
 

 

 

To           Date – 20.05.2023 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, 
2nd Floor, PJ Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001 
 
 

SUBJECT: SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2022‐23 
ALONG WITH THE ADDENDUM TO NOTICE OF 40TH ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (AGM) OF THE COMPANY UNDER REGULATION 34(1) OF THE SEBI 
(LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 
2015 

REF: DRONEACHARYA AERIAL INNOVATION LIMITED (SECURITY ID.: 
DRONACHRYA, SECURITY CODE: 543713) 

 

Dear Sir(s), 

In terms of provision of Regulation 34 (1) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed the 06th Annual Report for the financial 
year 2022-23 along with the Addendum to Notice of 06th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held on Monday, 12th June 2023 at 12:30 p.m. through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”). The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed 
to be conducted at the registered office of the Company at  Cabin No. - 10, 5th Floor, 
IndiQube Penta, New No. 51, (Old No.14) Richmond Road, Bangalore – 560025, Karnataka, 
India. 

We are commencing the process of sending the said documents by e – mail today i.e., 20th May 
2023 to the members of the Company who had registered their e – mail IDs with the 
depositories and with the Company. 

The schedule of events is set out as below: 

Events Particulars 
Cut-off of date to vote of AGM resolutions 02nd June 2023 
Commencement of E-Voting 09th June 2023; 09:00 A.M. 
End of E-Voting 11th June 2023; 05:00 P.M. 
Date of Annual General Meeting  12th June 2023 at 12:30 P.M. 

 

  



 

 

 

The Annual Report as well as the Notice of Annual General Meeting has been uploaded on the 
website of the Company at https://droneacharya.com/investors-relations/.  

This is for your information & records.  

Thanking you 

 

Yours Faithfully, 

For, DroneAcharya Aerial Innovations Limited 

 

 

__________________ 
Mukula Jayant Joshi 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
 
Enclosures: As above 



 

 

 
 

 NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
 

VOTING STARTS ON VOTING ENDS ON 
09th June, 2023; at 09:00 A.M. (IST) 11th June 2023; at 05:00 P.M. (IST) 

 
      
Dear Member (s), 
                                                                                                                                                               
NOTICE is hereby given to the shareholders of DroneAcharya Aerial Innovations Limited 
that the Annual General Meeting of the members of the company will be held on Monday, 
12th Day of June, 2023 at 12:30 P.M, through video conferencing mode and e - voting 
pursuant to provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s), 
amendment(s) or re – enactment(s) thereto) and other relevant circulars issued by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs for which purpose the Registered office of the Company shall be deemed 
as the venue and the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be made thereat. 
 
Pursuant to Section 102 and Section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Act, the 
statement pertaining to the said Resolutions setting out the material facts and the reasons/ 
rationale thereof are annexed to this Notice of Annual General Meeting (‘Notice’) for your 
consideration and forms part of this Notice. 
 
The Company is sending this Notice in electronic form to those Members whose e-mail 
addresses are registered with the Company/ Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) / 
Depositories. The communication of the assent or dissent of the Members would take place 
through the remote e-voting only. The details of the procedure to cast the vote forms part of 
the ‘Notes’ to this Notice. 
 
In compliance with Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with the Rules, the Company has engaged the 
services of Bigshare Services Private Limited for the purpose of providing remote e-voting 
facility to its Members. The instructions for remote e-voting are appended to this Notice. 



 

 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company, appointed M/s. More Daliya & Associates, 
Practising Company Secretaries, Nagpur (FRN - P2018MH066400), as the Scrutinizer for 
conducting the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
 
The remote e-voting period commences from IST 09.00 A.M. on Friday, 09th June 2023 and 
ends at IST 05.00 P.M. on Sunday, 11th June, 2023. The Scrutinizer will submit its report to 
the Chairman of the Company, or any person authorized by him upon completion of the 
scrutiny of the votes cast through remote e-voting. The results of the e - voting will be 
announced at or before IST 02.00 P.M. on Tuesday, 13th June, 2023. The said results along 
with the Scrutinizer’s Report will be displayed at BSE Limited where the equity shares of the 
Company are listed. 
 
Additionally, the results will also be uploaded on the Company’s website 
https://droneacharya.com/ and Bigshare Services Private Limited’s  website 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/landing.  The Members are requested to carefully read the 
instructions printed in this Notice and follow the same for voting.  

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 

1. To Receive, Consider And Adopt Financial Statements And Director’s Report for the 
Financial Year ended as on 31st March 2023 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mangina Srinivas Rao (DIN - 08095079), who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re – appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 

3. To alter the Articles of Association to appoint a same individual as the Chairperson as 
well as the Managing Director of the Company 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 14 and section 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), relevant 
applicable regulation(s) the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to alter 
the articles of association of the Company to appoint a same individual as the 
Chairperson as well as the Managing Director of the Company at the same time.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors of the Company are hereby authorized to sign and file all requisite forms 
including Form MGT – 14 along with such other documents as may be required, with 
the concerned Registrar of Companies, and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may 
be ancillary and incidental thereto for giving effect to this resolution”. 



 

 

 

By the Order of the Board 

For, DRONEACHARYA AERIAL INNOVATIONS LIMITED 

 
Sd/- 
 
________________________ 
Mukula Joshi 
Company Secretary 
 
 
Date – 20/05/2023 
Place – Pune 
 



 

 

 

NOTES: -  

1. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 and 22 
of the Rules, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, and SS-2, the Company 
is pleased to provide remote e-voting facility to its Members, to enable them to cast 
their votes electronically. The detailed procedure with respect to remote e-voting is 
mentioned in this Notice. 

2. Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act 2013 read with section 108 of the Act 
and Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 
(‘Rules’), each as amended, setting out the material facts relating to the aforesaid 
Resolutions and the reasons thereof is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice, a 
statement is annexed to the notice for matter of special business to be transacted at the 
meeting.   

3. Voting through e-voting, can be exercised only by the Member or his/her duly 
constituted attorney or in case of bodies corporate, the duly authorized person with the 
proof of their authorization. 

4. Please note that the Company is providing voting by electronic means to its Members 
as well as voting on the day of Annual General Meeting. Members who do not 
exercise casting votes through e – voting, can vote at the Annual General Meeting by 
self or through appointment of proxy. Corporate and institutional members shall be 
entitled to vote through their authorized representatives with proof of their 
authorization.   

5. Only those Members whose names are appearing in the Register of Members / List of 
Beneficial Owners as on the Cut-Off Date shall be eligible to cast their votes by 
remote e-voting. A person who is not a Member on the Cut-Off Date should treat this 
Notice for information purposes only. 

6. The voting shall commence on Friday,09th June, 2023, at 9:00 A.M. (IST) and shall 
end on Sunday, 11th June, 2023, at 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period, Members of 
the Company holding shares in physical or electronic form as on the Cut-Off Date 
may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
Bigshare Services Private Limited for voting thereafter. 

7. The notice of the Annual General Meeting has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at www.droneacharya.com . The Notice can also be accessed from the 
website of the Stock Exchange i.e., Bombay Stock Exchange at 
https://www.bsesme.com/ . The notice of the meeting is also disseminated on the 
website of Bigshare Services Private Limited (agency providing the Remote e – 
Voting facility) at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  

8. The Company has appointed M/s. More Daliya and Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries, Nagpur as the scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and the voting process in 
a fair and transparent manner. 

9. The Scrutinizer will submit his consolidated report to the Chairman, or any other 
person authorised by him, after completion of scrutiny of the votes cast, and the result 
of the voting through e – voting will be announced by the Chairman or any other 



 

 

person authorized by him, on or before Tuesday, 13th June, 2023. The Scrutinizer’s 
decision on the validity of votes cast will be final. 

10. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the 
Company’s website https://droneacharya.com/ and on the website of Bigshare 
Services Private Limited at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/landing immediately after 
the result is declared by the Company and the same shall be communicated to the 
Stock Exchange, where the equity shares of the Company are listed viz. BSE Limited 
(‘BSE’) and be made available on their respective websites viz. www.bseindia.com.  

11. The Resolutions, if passed by the requisite majority through e - voting, will be 
deemed to have been passed on the last date specified for voting i.e., Sunday, 11th 
June, 2023. Further, Resolutions passed by the members through e - voting are 
deemed to have been passed as if they are passed at a General Meeting of the 
Members. 

12. The Company has notified closure of Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 
from Monday, 05th June, 2023 to Monday, 12th June, 2023 (both days inclusive) for 
the purpose of the Annual General Meeting. 

13. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any 
change in their address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom 
they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form 
are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates immediately to 
the company or Bigshare Services Private Limited (Registrar and Transfer Agent). 

14. Members desirous of getting any information on the accounts or operations of the 
Company are requested to forward their queries to the Company atleast Ten (10) 
working days prior to the meeting, so that the required information can be made 
available at the meeting. 

15. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to 
register their e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual 
Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically. 

16. Process to cast votes through remote e-voting is as follows: 

 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS 
UNDER: 

i. The voting period begins on 09th June, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 11th June, 
2023 at 05:00 P.M. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) 
i.e.,02nd June, 2023 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be 
disabled by Bigshare for voting thereafter. 

ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled 
to vote at the meeting venue. 



 

 

 

iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are 
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 
shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the 
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting 
facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and 
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public 
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, 
by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of 
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast 
their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating 
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-
voting process. 

iv. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order 
to access e-Voting facility. 

 

1. Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 
meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given 
below: 



 

 

 

Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress 
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of BIGSHARE the 
e-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to i-Vote 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, 
there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers i.e. BIGSHARE, so that the user can visit the e-
Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress, and also able 
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. Click 
on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-voting period. 



 

 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the 
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which 
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to 
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and 
you will be redirected to i-Vote website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting 



 

 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-
Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to 
use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 
022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  

 

2. Login method for e-Voting for shareholder other than individual shareholders holding 
shares in Demat mode & physical mode is given below: 

 

 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  
 

 Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-
Voting Platform.                              
 

 Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ 
which is shared separately on you register email id. 
 



 

 

 
o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit 

Beneficiary ID as user id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 

Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID as user id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio 

Number registered with the Company as user id. 
 

Note If you have not received any user id or password please email from your 
registered email id or contact i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are 
mentioned in helpdesk section). 
 

 Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login.  
 
NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-
Voting system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or voted on an earlier event of 
any company then they can use their existing user id and password to login. 
 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ 
tab and then Click on ‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT 
(CAPTCHA) option and click on ‘Reset’. 
(In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / 
her registered e-mail address). 
 
Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal: 
 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on 

investor portal. 
 Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option. 
 Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner 

of the page. 
 Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN 

FAVOUR” or “ABSTAIN” and click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box 
will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm, else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you 
confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  



 

 

 
 Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen 

and also you will receive an email on your registered email id. During the voting 
period, members can login any number of times till they have voted on the 
resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently. 

 Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under 
“PROFILE” option on investor portal. 
 

3. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website: 
 

 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  

 Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN”, to register yourself on 
Bigshare i-Vote e-Voting Platform. 

 Enter all required details and submit. 
 After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password 

will be sent via email on your registered email id”. 
 

NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or voted on an earlier event of any company 
then they can use their existing user id and password to login. 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN 
LOGIN’ tab and further Click on ‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT 
(CAPTCHA) option and click on ‘RESET. 
(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her 
registered e-mail address). 
 
Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal: 
 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 
Investor Mapping: 
 

 First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option 
on custodian portal. 
o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown option and select document type 

power of attorney (POA). 
o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney 

(POA) or board resolution for respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”. 
 
 



 

 

 
Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the 
“InvestorID.pdf” (Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.) 

o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.  

                Investor vote File Upload: 

 To cast your vote select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu 
on custodian portal. 

 Select the Event under dropdown option. 
 Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the 

same file under upload document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation 
message will be displayed on the screen and also you can check the file status on 
display (Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently).  

 Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under 
“PROFILE” option on custodian portal. 
 

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting: 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Shareholder‘s other than individual 
shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & 
Physical mode. 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries 
regarding E-voting, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting 
module available at 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download 
section or you can email us to 
ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 
22. 

 

4. Procedure for joining the AGM through VC/ OAVM: 

For shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & 
physical mode is given below: 

 The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com under Investor login by using the e-voting credentials 
(i.e., User ID and Password). 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on 

investor portal. 
 Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM under the dropdown option. 
 For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of 

“VIDEO CONFERENCE LINK” option. 



 

 

 
 Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

              The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM are as under:- 
 

 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on 
the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.  
 

 Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote 
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system in the AGM. 
 

 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 
Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting: 
 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may 
refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) available at 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download section or you can email us to 
ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22. 

 

By the Order of the Board 

For, DRONEACHARYA AERIAL INNOVATIONS LIMITED 

 
Sd/- 
 
________________________ 
Mukula Joshi 
Company Secretary 
 
 
Date – 20/05/2023 
 
Place – Pune 



 

 

 
Statement to be annexed to the notice  

(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act 2013)  
 

3. TO ALTER THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION TO APPOINT A SAME 
INDIVIDUAL AS THE CHAIRPERSON AS WELL AS THE MANAGING 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

 

Members are hereby informed that board of directors in their meeting held on 29th April 2023 
has proposed & accorded their consent to alter the articles of association of the Company to 
appoint a same individual as the Chairperson as well as the Managing Director of the 
Company at the same time.” 
 

Pursuant to Section 14 and section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, company has to accord 
the consent of the members for alteration of the articles of association of the Company to 
appoint a same individual as the Chairperson as well as the Managing Director of the 
Company at the same time. 
 
Hence, members are requested to pass the Resolution No. 03 as a special resolution. 
 
None of the directors are interested in above resolution. 
 
 
 
By the Order of the Board 

For, DRONEACHARYA AERIAL INNOVATIONS LIMITED 

 
Sd/- 
________________________ 
Mukula Joshi 
Company Secretary 
 
Date – 20/05/2023                                                      
Place – Pune 



 

 

 
Form No. MGT-11 

Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN: U29308KA2017PLC101287 

Name of the 
company: 

DRONEACHARYA ARIAL INNOVATIONS LIMITED 

Registered office: Cabin No. - 10, 5th Floor, IndiQube Penta, New No. 51, (Old 
No.14) Richmond Road, Bangalore – 560025, Karnataka, India 

Corporate Office: At 1st & 2nd Floor, Galore IT Park, LMD Square, Bavdhan Pune -
411021, Maharashtra, India. 

 

Name of the member(s): 

Registered address: 

Email Id: 

Folio No./Client Id: 

DP ID: 

 

I/We, being the member (s) of M/s DRONEACHARYA ARIAL INNOVATIONS 
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“Only those who will risk going too far can possibly find out how far one can go.” 
                                                                                                                                                  – T.S. Eliot, author

These are the words of wisdom from one of the most renowned poets in English literature, 
emphasizing the value of having an appetite for risks. And truly so, unless you tread the 
path unknown, there is no way of knowing whether you’ll be able to withstand it. In the 
case of DroneAcharya, precisely six months back, at our Pre - IPO stage, we took a step 
towards becoming India’s first listed Drone Startup, with so many unknowns and knowing 
fully well that with all the perks come a ton of responsibilities.

Today, we are one of the most recommended drone service and training companies in 
India, on our way to becoming a Global drone brand for the complete ecosystem of 
Drone offerings. We owe greatly to all our investors, supporters and partners, who have 
shown immense confidence in us and kept us in their prayers throughout. Growing from 
3 members in 2020, to now a 85 members family has been an eventful journey with so 
many moments of learning, humility, failing and yet going on. 

What I’d like to convey to every supporter out there is that we will keep going strong, grow-
ing organically and giving every shot our very best. We are constantly treading unknown 
territories, exploring the integration of Drones with Artificial Intelligence, Machine Learning 
and Internet of Things, for new and innovative solutions across industries.
As we are constantly learning, adapting and evolving in our growth journey, we look for-
ward to your support and blessings. 

PRATEEK SRIVASTAVA
Founder &Managing Director
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MISSION
To Make Individuals &

Business Adopt Drone &
GIS Technology

VISION
To Create An Aerially 
Intelligent Ecosystem.
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Board  of Directors

PRATEEK SRIVASTAVA
Founder &  Managing Director

MANGINA SRINIVAS RAO
Independent Director

BHANUPRIYA NIKHIL THAKUR
Independent Director

NIKITA SRIVASTAVA 
CFO  (Chief Financial Officer)

UTSAV JASAPARA
Independent Director

Audit Commitee Nomination and Remuneration
 Committee:

Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee:

Chairperson Member

Bhanupriya, has been a leader and one of prominent 

member, in setting up corporate governance and 

system in the corporate houses. Bhanupriya, having 

about one decade of experience in the areas of 

corporate governance and compliance management 

system.

Nikita has an extensive hands-on experience in HR 

Generalist affairs, with more than 12 years of 

experience in a fast paced Human Resource Depart-

ment. Specialising in Recruitment, Compensation and 

benefits, HR records management, HR policies 

development, Employee orientation, Developing team 

building programs, Performance Reviews and 

Accounting, Nikita toggles between a multitude of 

responsibilities and provides her undue attention to 

all. 

Mr. Utsav Jasapara, aged 27 years, an Independent 

Director of our Company, He is a young, dynamic and 

enthusiastic Practicing Chartered Accountant having a 

rich professional experience of more than 5 Years. He is 

Fellow member of ICAI. He has also been awarded with 

the silver medal for the chartered accountancy 

examination. He has been providing the consultancy 

services to the pharmaceutical sector, Mining sector, 

power sector, Automobiles sector, Food and Beverages 

sector, IT sector, Agriculture Sector, Banking sector etc. 

Utsav is having the overall experience of 9 years in this 

M.Srinivas Rao, has been a visionary, strategist and leader, in developing 

entrepreneurial and inclusive business models that impact the bottom 

of the pyramid sector and has combined the best of technological 

breakthroughs with market imperatives that have led to large scale 

sustainable impact. His belief is that economic empowerment and 

innovative collaborations are the key to large scale inclusive change 

and impact.

Currently the Founder & Director of DroneAcharya Aerial Innovations, Prateek Srivastava 

has come a long way from being a GIS Developer to a serial entrepreneur and Founder 

of multiple GIS companies. Nominated as AsiaOne 40 Under 40 Most Influential Indians 

2018-19, his business acumen and market potential is widely being noticed and 

applauded. 

Holding an M. E. Degree in Remote Sensing and GIS from Asian Institute of Technology, 

Bangkok, Prateek possesses the right balance of technology and business, needed to 

lead a technology-driven company. 

6



Review of the Company for
FY 2022 - 23

DroneAcharya Aerial Innovations Limited, a leading player in the Indian drone industry, has 
had a successful year in FY 2022-23. The company has achieved great development in a 
variety of facets of its operations, including cooperation with educational institutions, 
expansion of its workforce, and tapping into a clientele that is well-known in its industry.

DroneAcharya has collaborated with various renowned educational institutions from India 
and abroad. Some of these being Savitribai Phule Pune University (SPPU) in Pune, Indian 
Institute Technology Ropar in Punjab, Asian Institute of Technology in Bangkok, Thailand. 
The major aim of collaborating with these renowned institutes is to integrate the As a result 
of these partnerships, the company has access to some of the world's most respected 
experts in the field of drones and associated technology. The company has been able to 
use the resources provided by these partnerships to create cutting-edge services for their 
customers. 

In the past DroneAcharya has partnered with the prestigious Rashtriya Raksha University 
in Gandhinagar Gujarat with an aim to provide training related to Drones and related 
courses to the Defence personnel. The company has also partnered with Whistling Woods 
International in Mumbai to promote and train the students from cinematography and 
filmmaking background to take up Drones in their curriculum. DroneAcharya’s partnership 
with Tata Strive aims to attract the underprivileged community to take up drones as a 
career option.  

Team During IPO (Dec 22)
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DroneAcharya has also made significant progress in the training and education of drone 
pilots. The company has completed training more than 350 DGCA drone pilots and 600 other 
drone and GIS related training. Moreover, the company has counseled and educated more 
than 6,000 students in the year. Such initiatives have contributed to the development of a 
skilled workforce in the drone industry and have helped the company to tap into new markets.

DroneAcharya has also embarked on a journey to build a robust business and expand its 
horizons. The company has seen a growth in its team, with over 60 people currently em-
ployed. This growth has enabled the company to take on larger and more complex projects, 
while maintaining its focus on innovation and quality. In terms of client acquisition, Dro-
neAcharya has successfully built acceptance among reputed clients by offering innovative 
solutions to business challenges. This has enabled the company to tap into new markets and 
expand its customer base. With its focus on innovation and quality, the company hopes to 
continue its growth trajectory in the coming years.

In conclusion, FY 2022-23 has been a successful year for DroneAcharya Aerial Innovations 
Limited. The company has made significant progress in various aspects of its operations, 
including collaborations with educational institutions, expansion of its team, and tapping into 
a reputed clientele. With its focus on innovation and quality, the company is well-positioned 
to continue its growth trajectory in the years to come.

600+
 Other drone and 

GIS related training

350+
DGCA Drone Pilot3816

Total DGCA Drone Pilot Till Mar 23

2991
DGCA Drone Pilot Certified by 

Government RPTO

825
DGCA Drone Pilot Certified by 

Private RPTO

313
DGCA Drone Pilot Certified by 

 RPTO

37.9%
Share in DGCA Certification 

Captured by
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Government’s 
Vision

The Honourable Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi has envisioned India 

becoming the Drone Hub of the World by 2030. The following are some of 

the major developments that have taken place to leverage this goal:

1. Liberalisation of rules with the introduction of the New Drone Rules 
     2021 from the Directorate General of Civil Aviation (DGCA).

The New Drone Rules 2021 introduced by the DGCA have brought significant liberalisation 
in rules related to drone operations in India. The new rules have simplified the process of 
obtaining a licence to fly drones, reducing the complexity and paperwork required, and 
removing many restrictions that were previously in place. The new rules have also 
allowed for Beyond Visual Line of Sight (BVLOS) operations, which will enable the deploy-
ment of drones for delivery, surveillance, and other critical applications.

2.  Approval of Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Schemes for Drones and  
     Drone Components.

The Indian government has approved Production Linked Incentive (PLI) schemes for 
drones and drone components. The PLI scheme aims to encourage the domestic manu-
facturing of drones and drone components by providing incentives to manufacturers 
based on their production volume. The scheme is expected to boost the growth of the 
drone industry in India and increase the country's self-reliance in drone manufacturing.

Jyotiraditya Scindia
Union Minister of Civil Aviation of India

Shri Narendra Modi
Honorable prime minister of india

9



Pradhan Mantri Kaushal
Vikas Yojana 4.0

3.  The announcement of Drone Shakti in the Union Budget 2022 
      to boost or promote 'Drone-As-A-Service (DrAAS)'.

The announcement of Drone Shakti in the Union Budget 2022 is a major step towards 
promoting Drone-as-a-Service (DrAAS) in India. The initiative aims to create a drone 
service network that will enable the deployment of drones for various applications 
such as surveying, mapping, and surveillance. This will provide opportunities for drone 
service providers and create new jobs in the drone industry.

4.  Promotion of the use of 'Kisan Drones' for crop assessment.

The promotion of 'Kisan Drones' for crop assessment is an innovative step taken by the 
Indian government to assist farmers in improving their crop yields. The use of drones 
for crop assessment can help farmers to identify the health of their crops, detect pests 
and diseases, and estimate yields. This will enable farmers to take corrective measures 
and increase their productivity.

5.  Encouragement of Drone manufacturers and service providers to 
     collaborate to enhance the technology.

The encouragement of collaboration between drone manufacturers and service pro-
viders is a crucial step towards enhancing the technology and capabilities of drones. 
Collaboration between these stakeholders can lead to the development of new and 
innovative drone applications and technologies, which can benefit the drone industry 
as a whole.

The Scheme Will Encourage New Age 
Courses For Industry 4.0 Like Coding, Al, 

Robotics, Mechatronix, 3d Printing, Internet 
Of Things, Drones And Other Soft Skills.Nirmala Sitharaman

Minister of Finance of India
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6.  Drone Pilot Certificate validity extended to 10 years, while Drone Pilot 
     Certificate abolished for Nano and Micro categories for commercial

The extension of Drone Pilot Certificate validity to 10 years is a welcome step for drone 
pilots in India. This will reduce the administrative burden on pilots, who will not have to 
renew their certificates frequently. Additionally, the abolition of Drone Pilot Certificate 
for nano and micro categories for commercial usage will encourage more people to 
operate drones for commercial purposes, further promoting the growth of the drone 
industry in India.

7.  The government shall train lakhs of youth in AI, drones, and coding in 
      the next 3 years under Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana (PMKVY) 
      4.0, as mentioned in Union Budget 2023.

The government's plan to train lakhs of youth in AI, drones, and coding under PMKVY 4.0 
is a significant step towards creating a skilled workforce in the drone industry. This will 
provide opportunities for young people to acquire skills and knowledge in emerging 
technologies, making them job-ready and promoting the growth of the drone industry 
in India. The initiative will also help to bridge the skills gap in the drone industry and 
increase India's competitiveness in the global drone market.
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"Drones are the future of 
warfare and technology. 
We need to embrace this 
technology and ensure 
that we have the right poli-
cies in place to harness its 
potential."- Rajnath Singh, 
Defense Minister of India

"Drones are a powerful tool for surveillance and can play a vital 
role in disaster management and security. However, their

misuse can also lead to security threats. It is important
that we regulate their usage effectively." -
Narendra Modi, Prime Minister of India

"Drones can be a valuable 
tool for agriculture, especially 
in precision farming. We 
need to encourage the adop-
tion of this technology to 
increase farm productivity 
and reduce costs." - 
Narendra Singh Tomar, 
Minister of Agriculture and 
Farmers' Welfare

"We Need Close To A Lakh 
Drone Pilots In The Years To
Come. So The Opportunity 
Is Tremendous"-
Jyotiraditya Scinida,
Minister of Civil Aviation

“Use Of Drones In Farm 
Sector Can Generate 
50 LAKH JOBS.”-
Nitin Gadkari, 
Minister of Road 
Transport and Highways
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North Carolina, USA

Dubai

Thailand

Malaysia  Philippines

Amsterdam, 
Netherlands

Tunisia
Qatar

Ahmedabad

Mumbai
Pune

Chandigarh

Bangalore

Global Expansion

DroneAcharya's considerable development and success in FY 2022-23 may be attributed, in large part, 
to the company's global expansion efforts. The firm has strategically expanded across numerous 
countries throughout this time, opening additional offices and training centers to match the rising 
demand for its services. North Carolina, Amsterdam, Thailand, the Philippines, Malaysia, and Dubai are 
some of the most important centers.

In order to better serve the Data Analytics And Data Processing Needs Of The Industry and aid busi-
nesses in deriving meaningful insights from drone-collected data, an office has been strategically 
established in North Carolina, USA to take advantage of the region's rich technology and innovation 
ecosystem.

Establishing a presence in both Amsterdam and Dubai was a natural decision in light of the regions' 
considerable potential in terms of technical development and experience in drone applications. The 
Dubai office is a hub for executing drone and GIS-related projects and providing training, whereas 
the Amsterdam office is where the company is partnering with local businesses, governments, and 
businesses to implement innovative drone solutions in fields like construction, infrastructure, security, 
and more. 

Centers in Thailand, Malaysia, and the Philippines are committed to providing in-depth training on 
Drones and GIS, as well as establishing Drone Centres of Excellence to provide participants with the 
skills they need to fully realize the potential of drone and GIS technology and successfully implement 
projects tailored to the specific requirements of the region.

DroneAcharya is also planning to launch branches in Qatar and Tunisia. These next locations will focus 
on implementing state-of-the-art drone solutions by collaborating with businesses, agencies, and 
organizations on drone and GIS-related initiatives. The company's goal is to use its knowledge and 
experience to promote innovation and provide meaningful outcomes via the use of drones and GIS in 
these areas.

Existing offices
Upcoming offices
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Upcoming
Franchises

Madhya Pradesh

Uttar Pradesh

Rajasthan
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Annual Report 2022-2023

DroneAcharya Aerial Innovations, has introduced a groundbreaking initiative to expand its reach 
throughout India. Through the establishment of Dronacharya-Powered Drone Training Organiza-
tions, the company aims to contribute to the vision set forth by India's Honorable Prime Minister, Shri 
Narendra Modi, to transform India into a global drone hub by 2030.

The Rise of Drones in India: 

Drones have witnessed a significant surge in popularity and utility in recent years. Their applications 
span diverse sectors, including agriculture, infrastructure, logistics, surveillance, and entertainment. 
Recognizing the immense potential of drones, the Indian government has been actively promoting 
adoption of Drones in various departments and industries.

Introducing DroneAcharya's Franchise Model: 
To expedite its expansion and enhance its outreach across India, DroneAcharya has devised an 
ingenious strategy of establishing drone training organizations through Franchises Pan - India. 
These franchises will be powered by DroneAcharya's proven curriculum, expertise, and support 
system, ensuring standardized training programs across the country. The franchise model will 
accelerate the growth of drone training centers, enabling a larger number of aspiring drone pilots 
to receive quality education. It will also address the challenge of geographical limitations, ensuring 
access to training resources in remote areas.

Advantages for Franchisees:
 The Franchise model offers a unique opportunity for drone enthusiasts, entrepreneurs, and existing 
training institutes to venture into the burgeoning field of drone education. Franchisees will not only 
be able to deliver high-quality training but also create job opportunities and contribute to building 
a skilled workforce to support India's drone ecosystem. 
DroneAcharya is successful in setting up 3 Franchises till now in India. The Locations of these fran-
chises are: Jabalpur, Jaipur and Noida. These locations are a stepping stone for DroneAcharya’s 
success with many more Franchises to come in the near future. 

DroneAcharya Aerial Innovations, has introduced a groundbreaking initiative to expand its 
reach throughout India. Through the establishment of Dronacharya-Powered Drone Train-
ing Organizations, the company aims to contribute to the vision set forth by India's Honor-
able Prime Minister, Shri Narendra Modi, to transform India into a global drone hub by 2030.

The Rise of Drones in India: 

Drones have witnessed a significant surge in popularity and utility in recent years. Their ap-
plications span diverse sectors, including agriculture, infrastructure, logistics, surveillance, 
and entertainment. Recognizing the immense potential of drones, the Indian government 
has been actively promoting adoption of Drones in various departments and industries.

Introducing DroneAcharya's Franchise Model: 

To expedite its expansion and enhance its outreach across India, DroneAcharya has de-
vised an ingenious strategy of establishing drone training organizations through Franchis-
es Pan - India. These franchises will be powered by DroneAcharya's proven curriculum, 
expertise, and support system, ensuring standardized training programs across the coun-
try. The franchise model will accelerate the growth of drone training centers, enabling a 
larger number of aspiring drone pilots to receive quality education. It will also address the 
challenge of geographical limitations, ensuring access to training resources in remote 
areas.

Advantages for Franchisees:

The Franchise model offers a unique opportunity for drone enthusiasts, entrepreneurs, and 
existing training institutes to venture into the burgeoning field of drone education. Franchi-
sees will not only be able to deliver high-quality training but also create job opportunities 
and contribute to building a skilled workforce to support India's drone ecosystem. 
DroneAcharya is successful in setting up 3 Franchises till now in India. The Locations of 
these franchises are: Madhya Pradesh, Uttar Pradesh, Rajsthan. These locations are a step-
ping stone for DroneAcharya’s success with many more Franchises to come in the near 
future. 
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₹54
Per Share Price

2000
Lot Size

262 
Times

Subscribed

₹6000 
crores 

Worth of 
Applications Received

₹33 crores 
Amount expected to raised
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The prospect of listing DroneAcharya on the Bombay Stock Exchange was highly engag-
ing for every employee of the company. Drone companies in India had never tried to venture 
into the blitz and dynamics of the stock markets. However, on December 13th, 2022, every-
one associated with DroneAcharya became a part of history as the country witnessed the 
first-ever drone company to open its extremely sought-after IPO.

The initial share price was stipulated at ₹ 52 to ₹ 54 per share, with a face value of ₹ 10 per 
share. Investors had the opportunity to buy a single lot of 2000 shares at one go. The huge 
demand for the company's stocks was felt across the country. On December 15th, the IPO 
closed with a record oversubscription by 243.70 times.

The listing price for the share was at a 95% premium of ₹ 102.00, which is also a rarity when 
referring to the BSE SME IPO. Stockholders were in for a treat during the coming days as the 
share price rose to ₹ 231.80  while approaching the first day of trading. Recently, the stock 
price has been performing well and has been varying between ₹ 140 and ₹ 150 for traders in 
general.

Team During IPO (Dec 22)
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Contracts And Agreements 
Entered In FY 2022 - 23

During the financial year 2022–2023, 
DroneAcharya Aerial Innovations made 
tremendous progress towards achieving 
its aim of providing creative and sustain-
able drone solutions. As DroneAcharya 
continues to expand its presence and 
offerings, partnerships and agreements 
are critical in driving innovation and 
growth. By collaborating with leading insti-
tutions and organizations like 
GridBots Technologies, Savitribai Phule 
Pune University (SPPU), IIT Ropar, Asian 
Institute of Technology (AIT),
Philippines, the students will be able to 
access the latest technologies, research, 
and insights to enhance its solutions and 
services.

The collaboration between DroneAcharya 
Aerial Innovations and Gridbots Technolo-
gies includes the production of drones and 
other related products, the cross-selling of 
products and services created jointly and 
currently offered, and the exchange of 
technological know-how, profession-
al networks, and resources for joint 
project development. Through 
this collaboration, we will enter 
a new market segment 
focused on the produc-
tion of unmanned 
aerial vehicles. 

DroneAcharya 
Aerial Innovations has 

partnered with Savitribai 
Phule Pune University to take 

drone technology education to new 
heights. Collectively, we are developing courses 

that will expose students to more than just the funda-
mentals of drone construction and operation. Drones have 

many potential uses, and our courses will explore them all, from 
data processing and Python programming to agricultural and disaster 

relief. The students will have an advantage in the market as our flagship DGCA 
Certified Drone Pilot Training Course is even more thorough and well-rounded thanks

 to these cutting-edge additions.

 

Gridbots Technologies
Location - Gujarat, IndiaAsian Institute of 

Technology (AIT)
Location : Thailand
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The collaboration with IIT Ropar seeks to 
encourage a culture of excellence and a 
conducive learning environment that 
would produce technologically-enabled, 
socially-conscious leaders who will make 
significant contributions to the benefit of 
society as a whole. By working together, we 
plan to investigate the viability of 
creating a Centre of Excellence on Drone 
Technology to tackle the many open 
research topics and problems in this field. 
The objective is to encourage the growth 
of a drone ecosystem in Punjab and the 
other states of North India

We have also partnered with the 
prestigious Asian Institute of Technology, 
marking our entry into the Southeast Asian 
market.

Our collaboration with AIT will open up exciting 
opportunities for co-developing cutting-edge 
projects that incorporate the latest advancements 
in drone technology and GIS. This partnership is a 
significant milestone for DroneAcharya as we 
expand our global reach and build relation-
ships with world-class institutions 
throughout Southeast Asia. By combin-
ing our expertise in drone technology 
with AIT's knowledge of regional 
needs and challenges, we're 
poised to tackle some of 
the most pressing issues 
facing the region 
today.

DroneAcharya 
has collaborated 

with the prestigious 
Rashtriya Raksha University 

(RRU) in Gandhinagar, Gujarat. The 
collaboration primarily focuses on preparing 

defense personnel as well as civilians from Gujarat 
and neighboring states  for DGCA Pilot certification and 

other courses including drone building, drone data processing, 
applications of drones in disaster and agriculture, and Python coding.

Savitribai Phule Pune University

Location : Pune, India.

Indian Institute of Technology Ropar

Location : Punjab, India.

19



Manufacturing 
and Technology

Employment

Education

Entertainment

How Has DA 
Established A Foothold
In The Sectors
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DroneAcharya’s flagship course is the DGCA Certified Drone Pilot Training, which has produced 
more than 350 Certified Drone Pilots from the organisation in the last year alone.

Furthermore, application-based training has been the unique selling point when it comes to 
drone-based training courses. Courses range from Drone Building, Drones in Agriculture, 
Drone-based Disaster Management, Aerial Cinematography, and Drone Racing, to GIS-based 
Drone Data Processing Course along with Python Coding for GIS course. Such courses not only 
make any candidate a job-ready prospect for drone companies but also enable people to 
become freelancers and run their businesses based on their knowledge.

DroneAcharya has also been able to fulfil multiple placement requirements from candidates 
attending the courses. More than 50 candidates have been placed in multiple drone manufac-
turing and drone application-based companies in India. The candidates are now flying drones for 
multiple purposes in their respective companies, some of which are logistics, agriculture, manu-
facturer testing, aerial surveying, mapping, and much more.

The entertainment industry has been using drones widely to shoot cinematic views for their proj-
ects. DroneAcharya has been able to provide its services to multiple clients in terms of grabbing 
aerial cinematography. Shoots for sports entertainment have also been a part of our client roster 
recently. The aerial videography of the Indian Navy Sailing Championship 2022 presents itself as 
an example of the skills from our talented in-house drone flying experts.

Drone Technology has been highly dependent on the available talent to enhance industrial 
innovation. DroneAcharya is thus helping to bridge the gap between talent and technology with 
its sought-after drone and GIS training courses. Apart from that, there are multiple ser-
vice-based avenues that our teams have explored in various sectors, such as oil and gas, 
mining, infrastructure, defence, agriculture, and many more.

We have been fortunate enough to be a part of the upcoming revolution of making India the 
Drone Hub of the world under the honorary guidance of India’s Prime Minister, Shri Narendra 
Modi. DroneAcharya aims to keep excelling to provide better solutions to all forms of drone and 
GIS-based applications for the country and the world.
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How Has      Gained An
ADDED ADVANTAGE 
In The Drone Sector After
Being 1st Listed Entity In
The Drone Industry?

NEW OFFICES | FRANCHISE FOR TRAINING

MANUFACTURING UNIT | TEAM GROWTH
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Being the first listed Drone Startup in India, we have enabled drone startups to look into the possibilities 
of becoming a Public Limited company and reap its benefits. We as a company, have received a very 
positive response from the shareholders and the public in general as an emerging technology compa-
ny. Through our company status, enquiries for training, partnerships and projects have increased to a 
great extent. 

A few major developments post our IPO, are listed below:

NEW OFFICES: 
The investment that we raised through the IPO has enabled us to expand nationally as well as globally. 
We have currently set up a new branch in Chandigarh and are in the process of doing the same in 
Jaipur and Ahmedabad. Globally, we have opened our office in North Carolina (USA), Dubai (UAE), 
Amsterdam (EU) and Bangkok (Thailand). Through strategic partnerships, we are also opening
collaborative offices in Malaysia, Philippines, Qatar and Tunisia.

FRANCHISE FOR TRAINING: 
In February, 2023, we announced our Franchise offering for DroneAcharya’s DGCA certified drone pilot 
training and all Drone and GIS (Geographic Information System) related training. Since then, we have 
confirmed four new franchises in Jabalpur (Madhya Pradesh), Satara (Maharashtra), Noida (New Delhi) 
and Jaipur (Rajasthan). Through partnerships with educational institutes as well, we are setting up 
additional DGCA certified drone pilot training centers in Pune in collaboration with Savitribai Phule Pune 
University and drone and GIS centric courses with Manipal Institute of Technology, Bengaluru.

MANUFACTURING UNIT: 
Since the inception of the company, we have been conducting research and development for drones 
and niche products that we would one day produce through our manufacturing unit. Today, we have 
initiated the process of establishing our very own manufacturing unit in Maharashtra for production of 
Agricultural drones and drones for surveying and surveillance.

TEAM GROWTH: 
With multiple arms of the business spreading through DroneAcharya, we have been continuously 
acquiring new talent in the field of Aeronautics, Engineering, Data Analytics, Web Development, Testing, 
Business Development and Marketing. Overall, we are now a team of 70 team members, positioned in 
multiple offices in India as well as our global offices.
All in all, we have been fortunate enough to have received the support and trust from our well wishers 
and will continue to perform and move forward.
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LOOKING FORWARD ...

We are looking at dominating the Indian Drone industry and creating a mark globally as well 
in the years to come. Having grown to become one of the most recommended DGCA certified 
drone pilot training organizations in India today, we aim to capture the maximum drone pilot 
training market in the  coming years. 

In terms of the Franchise offering, we are planning to have a PAN India presence through our 
Franchises, such that at any given point in time, any prospect would easily be able to access 
our centers within their state or the neighboring state. 

Also, we have already initiated the manufacturing unit set up in Maharashtra, we are hopeful 
to complete the set up and roll out our drone products in the coming 2 years. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis:

Increasing Profitability: 

Half Year & Full Year, ended March 31st, of FY 2023 Financials and Business Updates: 
Revenue from operations stood at INR Rs. 13.58 Crores, for half year ended of FY2023 and PAT 
at Rs. 2.57 Crores for the half year ended March 31, 2023.  
For the full year FY23, revenue clocked was RS. 18.57 Crores, with PAT of Rs. 3.42 Crores. 
These numbers are largely driven owing to strong tie ups and rapid execution in Drone 
Training, better brand visibility & higher quality training, leading to relatively better realiza-
tions and increasing the proportion of higher margin product sales, a strategy which has 
started to yield significantly positive results. 
Seasonally, December quarter is a slower quarter for the industry. Typically, in Q4, ie, March 
23 quarter, the Drone industry experiences an increase in demand for new projects. 

• DroneAcharya delivered a robust set of operating results for the half year ended 31st 
March, 2023. The revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2023 increased 
by 417 % to ₹1856.94 Lakhs from ₹358.73 lakhs in year ended for FY 2021-22. 

• Management expects revenue to be in the range of Rs. 45 crores to Rs. 50 Crores for FY24, 
mainly on account of strongly increasing demand for drone pilot training courses, man-
ufacturing of drones, overseas opportunities, sales avenues in the defense sector and 
other Drone related activities.

•
• EBITDA & PAT margins for FY24 will be in line with FY23 reported margins.  All efforts as 

highlighted below will be made to improve the margins going forward as
     benefits of scale will kick in.

• EBITDA increased by 768.65% to ₹498.74 Lakhs for the year ended for FY 2022 – 2023 from 
57.30 in year ended for FY 2021-22 and PAT to 741.57% to 342.10 Lakhs for the year ended 
for FY 2022 – 2023 from Rs. 40.65 Lakhs in the year ended for FY 2021-22.

                  1.   Robust numbers driven by increase in scale 
                 2.   Focused on strategic cost rationalization 
• Company is focused on rationalizing working capital significantly, to improve cash gen-

eration and Return on Capital Employed. 
• Overall cash generation improved due to dual factors:
                 1.  Increase in operational efficiency and scale
                2.  Better utilization of capital employed
The Company is focused on improving Return on Equity and Return on Capital Employed, 
and this will become visible in the coming quarters, beginning from the reported one. 

Business Outlook & Broad Guidance for FY24 
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Growth Initiatives 

• As a part of our growth strategy, DroneAcharya has partnered with several educational 
institutes to set its position as one of the leading Drone centric training providers: 

1. Opening up a 2nd DGCA certified Drone pilot training center in collaboration    with 
Rashtriya Raksha University: This tie up with Rashtriya Raksha University (Gujarat), an 
educational organization of National importance, is of great importance as it will 
enable us to share our technical expertise with the Defence as well as civilians in 
terms of Drone and GIS centric courses.
 
 2. Collaboration with Whistling Woods International (Mumbai): This collaboration 
enables us to cater to the upcoming generation of videographers, filmmakers and 
directors who will inherently be using drones in taking cinematic shots and providing 
a better visual experience to the audience. Other than this, we are jointly also offering 
GIS and drone building courses for the students. 

3. Collaboration with Tata STRIVE: Our collaboration with Tata STRIVE is keeping in mind 
the growing need for certified talent in the Drone and GIS industry. In order top cater 
to this, we are equipping the youth of India with DGCA certified drone pilot training 
and knowledge of its applications in various industries. Through Tata STRIVE, we plan 
to reach the masses that are in need of livelihood and a better standard of living. 

4. Tie up with Savitribai Phule Pune University (Pune): Our tie up with the “Oxford of the 
East” will enable us to provide Drone Training, establish Drone Centre of Excellence 
and jointly conduct Research and Development activities. This is a major step in cre-
ating jobs for the new generation of students in the Drone and GIS and Aerospace 
industry. 

5. Tie up with Asian Institute of Technology (Thailand): Expanding our training base to 
Thailand, we have partnered with Asian Institute of Technology to provide Drone Pilot 
training and related courses, jointly take up drone and GIS projects and tenders and 
provide internship and job opportunities to the students of AIT. 

6. We are also expanding our base to Philippines, Tunisia and Malaysia through some 
strategic tie ups and will be disclosing the details soon. 

7. We have partnership with the Gridbots Technology for manufacturing of the Drones 
and related equipment’s
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Capital Raise via IPO, in FY23: 

• DroneAcharya is at the border of a major transformational journey and is currently in the 
process of implementing strategy to strengthen its brand and expand its presence glob-
ally. The core aspect of this strategy is stated as below:

• Investing in human capital with unparalleled and industry leading experience: We 
are adding individuals with exceptional marketing and sales acumen who have a 
proven track record of creating and expanding highly customer-focused brands 
with strong recall value 

• Invest in Training Infrastructure: We aim to seize the expanding potential in the 
drone pilot training market by establishing Remote Pilot Training Organization (RP-
TO’s) throughout India and enhancing our offerings for services through drones 
and other drone related courses. 

• Actively tying up with various universities and companies in the drone sector, 
which are designed to seamlessly integrate with its huge client base and provide 
DroneAcharya with useful information about the market's pulse, product demand, 
and customer preferences across the regions we serve. 

• In the process of implementing an expansive footprint strategy which will allow us 
to expand into new geographies and solidify our position in the markets where our 
services are well received. 

• DroneAcharya is in the process of granting its franchisee and partnering with vari-
ous universities across India for establishing its presence and enhancing brand 
value. 

• We are thrilled to announce that we will be foraying into “Manufacturing of Drones”, 
in the near future, a market that has increasing demand in Indian markets. 

• Raised a capital of ₹ 33,96,60,000/- through the Initial public Offer (IPO), held in the 
month of December 2022.
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Management Comments:
 
“We understand the importance of adapting to changing market conditions and evolv-
ing customer needs and believe that continuous improvement is key to staying ahead of 
the competition. Our focus is on streamlining processes, improving efficiency, and lever-
aging technology to drive growth and improve client satisfaction. Our aim is to create a 
more agile and innovative organization that is better equipped to respond to market 
changes and capitalize on new opportunities. 

We align with our goal of bolstering our financial performance by: 

We are confident that this transformation will position our company for long-term suc-
cess and growth, and we look forward to working with our team to make this vision a 
reality. 

We would like to thank our employees for their efforts and our investors/stakeholders for 
their continued trust, support and encouragement.” 

Training Industry Outlook 
With the current growth rate of the Drone Pilot Training Sector in India, the requirement 
has been estimated at 1,00,000 drone pilots until the year 2025. The country has been 
boosted by the recently opened DGCA Authorized Remote Pilot Training Organizations 
(RPTO) within the last financial year. As of 31st March 2023, there are 50 RPTOs that have 
been set up across multiple states to certify individuals for flying drones legally through-
out the country. Currently there are more than 4000 DGCA Certified Drone Pilots, out of 
which DroneAcharya holds the share of 8.4% of the total market size. DroneAcharya 
endeavors to achieve 20% market share by the end of this financial year. 

• Increasing our profitability, while growing revenues strongly 
• Increasing in the optimization of cost 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
Dear Members, 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 06th Annual Report together with the Audited 
Statement of Accounts of our Company for the Year ended 31st March, 2023. 
 
1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 
 
The Company’s Financial Performance for the year ended 31st March, 2023 is summarized as 
under: 
 

Particulars FY 2022 - 23 FY 2021 - 22 
Revenue from Operations 18,56,95,000.00 3,58,73,000.00 
Other Income  56,61,000.00 1,000.00 
Total Income 19,13,56,000.00 3,58,74,000.00 
Total Expenses 14,49,05,000.00 3,03,18,000.00 
Profit Before Tax 4,64,51,000.00 55,56,000.00 
(Less): Current Tax 1,06,35,000.00 14,59,000.00 
Deferred Tax 14,74,000.00 32,000.00 
Income Tax earlier years 0.00 0.00 
Profit for the Year 3,43,42,000.00 40,65,000.00 

 
2. DIVIDEND: 
 
Considering future growth prospects for the company, the Board of Directors decided to 
retain the profits earned and therefore does not recommend any dividend for the financial 
year 2022-2023. 
 
3. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK: 
 
The Company understands the importance of adapting to changing market conditions and 
evolving customer needs and believe that continuous improvement is key to staying ahead of 
the competition. Our focus is on streamlining processes, improving efficiency, and leveraging 
technology to drive growth and improve client satisfaction. Our aim is to create a more agile 
and innovative organization that is better equipped to respond to market changes and 
capitalize on new opportunities. The management is confident that the transformation will 
position the company for long-term success and growth. 
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4. THE AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES, IF ANY: 
 
Pursuant to provisions of section 134(1)(j) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
transferred an amount of Rs. 42,28,35,000/- (Securities Premium and profit during the year) 
to reserve account during the year under review. 
 
5. THE CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS IF ANY: 
 
During the year, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company.  
 
6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY: 
 
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company have 
occurred from the closure of the financial year till the date of this report. 
 
7. LISTING OF SHARES: 
 
The Shares of the Company were listed on Bombay Stock Exchange SME platform, Mumbai 
on 23rd of December 2022. The Company has paid the annual listing fee for the financial year 
2022-2023. 
 

The Equity Shares of the Company has the electronic connectivity under ISIN No. 
INE0MQD01015. To provide service to the Shareholders, the Company has appointed M/s. 
Bigshare Services Private Limited, Pinnacle Business Park, Office No S6-2, 6th, Mahakali 
Caves Rd, Next to Ahura Centre, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400093 as Registrar 
and Transfer Agent of the Company for existing physical based and allied Secretarial 
Services for its Members / Investors and for Electronic Connectivity with NSDL and CDSL.  
 
8. SHARE CAPITAL: 
 
A. Authorized Capital and Changes thereon, if any: 
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crore 
Only) divided into 2,99,50,000 (Two Crore Ninety - Nine Lakh and Fifty Thousand) Equity 
Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each and 50,000 (Fifty Thousand) Preference Shares Rs.10/- 
(Rupees Ten) each. 
 
During the year authorized capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 50,00,000/- 
(Rupees Fifty Lakh only) to Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crore Only) in the Extra – 
Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 27th April, 2022 at the Corporate of the 
Company. 
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B. Paid up Capital and Changes thereon, if any: 
 
The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 23,98,86,000/- (Rupees Twenty – Three 
Crore Ninety – Eight Lakh and Eighty – Six Thousand Only) divided into 2,39,88,600 (Two 
Crore Thirty – Nine Lakh Eighty – Eight Thousand and Six Hundred) Equity Shares of Rs. 
10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. 
 
During the year, the Company had issued Shares by way of following Allotments: 
 

Sr. No Type of Issue Type of 
Shares 

Number of 
Shares 
Issued 

Face Value 
(in Rs.) 

Total 
Amount  
(in Rs.) 

1 

Issue of 9% 
Compulsorily 
Convertible 

Preference Shares 

Preference 
Shares 23,688 Rs.10/- Rs. 

2,36,880/- 

2 

Issue of 9% 
Compulsorily 
Convertible 

Preference Shares 

Preference 
Shares 12,348 Rs. 10/- Rs. 

1,23,480/- 

3 Bonus Shares Equity 
Shares 1,75,21,614 N.A. N.A. 

4 Initial Public 
Offer (IPO) 

Equity 
Shares 62,90,000 Rs.10/- Rs. 

6,29,00,000/- 

 
*Note – All the preference shares have been converted into Equity Shares bearing face value 
of Rs. 10/- each. 
 
9. DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH INITIAL PUBLIC 
OFFER (IPO): 
 
During the year under review, the Company raised funds aggregating to Rs. 33.96 Crores 
through public issue. The Company has utilized the funds raised through issue for the 
purpose as stated in the Letter of Offer. Details of utilization of fund as on 31st March, 2023 
are as under: 
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Sr. 
No. Original Object Original 

Allocation Funds Utilized Amount of 
Deviation 

1 Purchase of Drones and 
Other accessories 

Rs. 
27,98,66,000.00 

Rs. 
6,62,64,307.58 NIL 

2 General Corporate 
Expenses 

Rs. 
5,97,94,000.00 

Rs. 
5,97,94,000.00 NIL 

 
 
10. DEPOSITS: 
 
The Company has not accepted nor renewed any deposits falling within the purview of 
section 73 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014 as amended from time to time, during the year under the review and therefore details 
mentioned in Rule 8(5)(v) & (vi) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to deposits 
covered under chapter V is not required to be given. 
 
11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER 
SECTION 186: 
 
The Company has not entered in to any transaction viz. loan, guarantees or investments in 
any other company or person as specified under section 186 therefore other requirement 
under this section are Not Applicable to the Company. 
 
 

Particulars CIN of Company Name of other 
Company 

Amount Involved 
(in INR) 

Loan Given NA NA NA 
Investment Made NA NA NA 
Guarantee Provided NA NA NA 

 
 
12. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188 IN THE FORM 
AOC-2: 
 
There are five (5) related party transactions as referred under Section 188(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year 2022 - 23. All the related party transactions 
were carried out at arm’s length. Form AOC – 2 has been annexed to this Report as 
“Annexure A”. 
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13. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES: 
  
During the year no company has become or ceased to become subsidiary or joint venture or 
associate of the company. 
 
14. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-
SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE 
REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT: 
 
The auditor has not reported any frauds pursuant to provisions of section 143 (12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in his report. 
 
15. EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY 
QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER 
MADE BY THE AUDITOR IN HIS REPORT: 
 
The Auditors have not given any qualification, reservation, Adverse remark or Disclaimer in 
his Auditor Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. The Observations made by 
the Auditors are self-explanatory and have been dealt with an Independent Auditor’s Report 
and its Annexures forming part of this Annual Report and hence do not require any further 
clarification. 
 
16. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. More Daliya & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, Nagpur, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 
2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 is 
annexed to this Report as “Annexure B”.  
 
The auditor has given following qualifications in his report: 
 

Auditor’s Qualifications Management’s Response 
The Company has not complied with the 
Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI for 
conducting Board Meetings and General 
Meetings. 

The Management is striving to comply with 
all the applicable rules, regulations and 
standards. There shall be an endeavour to 
avoid non – compliance in the future. 
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The Company has failed to update its CIN 
from unlisted to Listed till date. 

The Company has filed a e – form GNL – 2 
with the Registrar of Companies (ROC), 
Bangalore and also couriered physical copies 
of required documents to ROC for change in 
CIN. But the form has not been processed 
and approved by the ROC yet. 

 
 
17. INTERNAL AUDITOR: 
 
The Board has appointed M/s. Veena Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Firm 
Reg. No.145240W as Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23 under Section 138 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
18. THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO, IN SUCH MANNER AS MAY 
BE PRESCRIBED: 
 
1) Conservation of energy: 
Your Directors are of the opinion that with respect to conservation of energy and technology 
absorption as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act 2013 read with the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not relevant in view of the nature of business 
activities of the Company and hence, are not required to be given. 
 
2) Technology absorption: 
The company is using latest technology and indigenization, which keeps on absorbing latest 
technology for the betterment of society at large. 
3) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
Your company has the following Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo (after converting into 
INR) during the year: 
 
Foreign Exchange Earnings – Rs. 3,10.57,084/- 
Foreign Exchange Outgo – Rs. 63, 97, 064/- 

19. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 
A. Present Composition of Board of Directors: 
As on the date of the report, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of total Five 
(5) directors. The Composition of the Board of Directors is as under: 
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Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director DIN Designation 

1 Mr. Prateek Srivastava 07709137 Managing Director 
2 Mrs. Nikita Srivastava 08082593 Director 

3 Mrs. Bhanupriya Nikhil 
Thakur 08276607 Additional Director (Women 

Independent Director) 

4 Mr. Mangina Srinivas Rao 08095079 Additional Director 
(Independent) 

5 Mr. Utsav Jasapara 09711346 Additional Director 
(Independent) 

 

B. Appointment/Cessation/ change in designation of directors:  

During the year under review, there is no Appointment / Cessation or Change in designation 
of any Director.  

However, the following appointments were made: 

Name of the 
Director 

DIN/ PAN Designation Date of 
Appointment/ 

Change in 
Designation 

Nature of 
Change 

Mrs. 
Bhanupriya 

Nikhil 
Thakur 

08276607 

Additional Director 
(Women Independent 

Director) 

25/06/2022 Appointment 

Mr. Mangina 
Srinivas Rao 08095079 Additional Director 

(Independent) 
22/08/2022 Appointment 

Mr. Utsav 
Jasapara 09711346 Additional Director 

(Independent) 
22/08/2022 Appointment 

  
 
Appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP): 
 
During the year the following appointments were made: 
 

Name of the 
KMP 

PAN Designation Date of 
Appointment/ 

Change in 
Designation 

Nature of 
Change 

Mrs. Nikita 
Srivastava BAZPM2614N Chief Financial Officer 

(CFO) 
02/07/2022 Appointment 
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Ms. Mukula 
Joshi AZHPJ1038K Company Secretary 

(CS) 
27/06/2022 Appointment 

 
20. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:  
 
The Board of Directors met at Regular Intervals to transact business and the gap between two 
meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days. During the Financial Year 2022-23, 
Twenty - Three (23) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held i.e., on the 
following dates: 01.04.2022, 05.04.2022, 16.05.2022, 21.05.2022, 09.06.2022, 10.06.2022, 
17.06.2022, 25.06.2022, 27.06.2022, 30.06.2022, 02.07.2022, 05.07.2022, 11.07.2022 at 
11:00 A.M, 11.07.2022 at 03:00 P.M., 06.08.2022, 12.08.2022, 22.08.2022, 25.08.2022, 
27.08.2022, 20.10.2022, 27.10.2022, 08.11.2022, 20.12.2022 at 02:30 P.M., 20.12.2022 at 
07:00 P.M., 20.12.2022 at 09:00 P.M. and 06.01.2023. 
 
21. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
 
During the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors without the 
attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management, was held on 06th 
Day of January, 2023, as required under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 (Code for 
Independent Directors) read with Regulations 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

The Independent Directors inter-alia reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent 
Directors, Chairman of the Company and the Board as a whole 
 
22. DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the 
Company confirms that- 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable 
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been 
followed and there are no material departures from the same.   
 
b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 
 
d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis. 
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e) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and are 
operating effectively. 
 
f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

23. A STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
UNDER SUB-SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149: 
 
The Company has received necessary declarations from all the Independent Directors of the 
Company Under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, confirming that they meet the 
criteria of Independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
24. STATUTORY DISCLOSURES:  
 
None of the Directors of your Company are disqualified as per the provisions of Section 
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. Your directors have made necessary disclosures, as 
required, under various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR. 
 
25. BOARD EVALUATION: 

The Companies Act 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the 
Board and Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 states that the performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the Director 
being evaluated. The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board and after seeking 
inputs from all the Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and 
structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information flow, frequency of meetings and 
functioning etc. The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board and after 
seeking inputs from the Committee Members. The Board and the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual Directors on the basis 
of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director to the Board and Committee 
Meetings. The Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. In a separate 
Meeting of Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole and performance of 
the Chairman was evaluated 
 
26. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
In terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors consisting of below mentioned Independent Directors as a practice of good 
governance:  
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         (i) Mr. Utsav Jasapara (DIN: 09711346)      -   Chairman (Independent Director)      
        (ii) Mrs. Bhanupriya Thakur (DIN: 08276607)       -   Member (Independent Director)      
       (iii) Mr. Mangina Srinivas Rao (DIN: 08095079)    -   Member (Independent Director) 
 
All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 
 

 
27. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:  
 
In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors consisting of below mentioned 
Independent Directors as a practice of good governance:  
  
        (i) Mr. Mangina Srinivas Rao (DIN: 08095079)  -   Chairman (Independent Director)      
        (ii) Mrs. Bhanupriya Thakur (DIN: 08276607)    -   Member (Independent Director)       
       (iii) Mr. Utsav Jasapara (DIN: 09711346)             -   Member (Independent Director) 
 
28. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 
In terms of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 20 (1) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015, the Company has constituted Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors consisting of below mentioned 
Independent Directors as a practice of good governance:  
  
        (i) Mrs. Bhanupriya Thakur (DIN: 08276607)    -   Chairperson (Independent Director)      
        (ii) Mr. Utsav Jasapara (DIN: 09711346)             -   Member (Independent Director)       
       (iii) Mr. Mangina Srinivas Rao (DIN: 08095079)  -   Member (Independent Director) 
 
29. VIGIL MECHANISM: 
 
The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporates a whistle blower policy in 
terms of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, includes an Ethics comprising 
senior Executives of the Company. Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle blower 
through an e-mail or letter. The policy on vigil mechanism may be accessed on the 
Company’s website at https://droneacharya.com/. 
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30. CODE OF CONDUCT: 
 
Your Directors informed that pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17(5) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligation & Disclosure requirement) Regulations, 2015 every Listed Company is under an 
obligation to adopt a policy on Code of Conduct for all the Members of the Board of 
Directors and Senior Management. As per the said Regulation, the Board of Directors 
adopted the Policy on code of conduct for all the Members of Board of Directors and Senior 
management of the Company. 

31. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
 
The provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, regarding Corporate Social Responsibility is not 
applicable to the company. 
 
32. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 
 
The Company has well laid out risk management policy, which periodically assess the threats 
and opportunities that will impact the objectives set for the Company as a whole. The policy 
is designed to provide the categorization of risks into threats and its causes, impact, treatment 
and control measures. As a part of the Risk Management Policy, the relevant parameters for 
protection of environment, safety of operations and health of people at work especially those 
working in food value chain are monitored regularly. 
 
33. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSEMENT OF WOMAN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESAL) ACT, 2013:   
 
The company has formed Internal Complaint Committee to address issues pertaining to 
sexual harassment at work place, during the period under the review no complaint has been 
received to Internal Complaint Committee. 
 
Following is the constitution of the Internal Committee: 
 

Sr. No. Designation Name of Officer/ Member 

1 Presiding Officer Mrs. Sapna Sharma (Admin 
Executive) 

2 Member Ms. Purva Dhuri (Asst. Manager, 
HR & Culture) 

3 Member Ms. Mukula Joshi (Manager, Legal 
& Compliance) 

4 Member Col. Sunil Sharma (President, 
Business & Strategy) 
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5 Member Adv. Sadanand Sonar (External 
Member) 

 
 
34. IN CASE OF A COMPANY COVERED UNDER SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 
178, COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING 
QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR 
AND OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 178: 
 
The Company has well laid out the policy for Directors’ appointment and remuneration, 
which determines the terms of appointment, qualification, independence of directors along 
with remuneration payable. The policy is designed to provide such terms for appointment and 
levels of remuneration such that they attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality and 
ability required to run the Company successfully. 
 
35. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 
The tenure of appointment of M/s KPRK & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Nagpur 
(Firm Reg. No. 108051W), the existing Statutory Auditors will expire at the conclusion of the 
10th Annual General Meeting as per the provisions of Section 139(2) of the Act and Rules 
framed thereunder. 
 
The Board of Directors and Members of the Company at its previous Annual General 
Meeting held on 30.09.2022 has, approved the appointment of M/s KPRK & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, Nagpur having Firm Reg. No. 108051W as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company for a term of 5 (five) years commencing from the conclusion of the 05th AGM 
till the conclusion of the 10th AGM. 
 
36. COST RECORDS AND AUDIT: 

The provisions of section 148 of Companies Act, 2013 about maintenance of cost records and 
audit are not applicable to the Company. 
 
37. DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH 
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
The Board of Directors, had laid down internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls 
are adequate and operating effectively. During the year, such controls were tested and no 
reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed. 
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37. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURNS:  
 
In terms of provisions of section 92, 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 
12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the details forming part 
of extract of the Annual Return are hosted on https://droneacharya.com/investors-
relations/annual-returns/. By virtue of amendment to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Company is not required to provide extract of Annual Return (Form MGT-9) as 
part of the Board’s report 
 
38. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS: 
 
There has been no significant and material order passed by any regulators or courts or 
tribunals, impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
 
39. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 
 
Your directors take this opportunity to place on record their sincere appreciation of all 
stakeholders, bankers, dealers, auditors, vendors and other business partners which have 
contributed to the successful management of the Company’s affairs. Your Directors 
recognize and appreciate the efforts and hard work of all the employees of the Company and 
their continued contribution to its progress. 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

DRONEACHARYA AERIAL INNOVATIONS LIMITED 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Prateek Srivastava    Mrs. Nikita Srivastava 
(Managing Director, DIN: 07709137)  (Director, DIN: 08082593) 
 
Date: 29.04.2023 
Place: Pune 
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“ANNEXURE A” TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
FORM AOC - 2 

 
{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 

 Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014} 
 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis - Not 
Applicable  

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: -  

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,  
DRONEACHARYA AERIAL INNOVATIONS LIMITED 
 

Mr. Prateek Srivastava 
Managing Director  
(DIN – 07709137)                                        Date – 29.04.2023          Place – Pune 
  

Sr. 
no. 

Name(s) of 
the related 

party 

Nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 

arrangement
s/ 

transactions 

Duration of 
the 

contracts / 
arrangemen

ts/ 

transactions 

Salient terms 
of the 

contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
including the 
value, if any 
(Amount in 

Lakhs) 

Date (s) 
of 

approval 
by the 
Board 

Amou
nt paid 

as 
advanc

es 

1. Pradeep 
Srivastava 

Director’s 
Father 

Consultancy 
for Strategies, 

Education 
and Research 

From 08th 
November 

2022 to 31st 
March 2023 

To act as a 
President -  
Strategies, 

Education and 
Research on 
consultancy 

basis 

08.11.20
22 

Nil 
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“ANNEXURE B” TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

FORM MR – 3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2022-23 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 
The Members, 
M/s DRONEACHARYA AERIAL INNOVATIONS LIMITED, 
CIN: U29308KA2017PLC101287 
Cabin No. - 10, 5th Floor, IndiQube Penta,  
New No. 51, (Old No.14) Richmond Road,  
Bangalore – 560025, Karnataka, India 

 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices for the Financial Year 2022-23 of M/s 
DRONEACHARYA AERIAL INNOVATIONS LIMITED (hereinafter called the 
“Company”), incorporated on 10th March, 2017 and having CIN- U29308KA2017PLC101287 
and Registered office at Cabin No. - 10, 5th Floor, IndiQube Penta, New No. 51, (Old No.14) 
Richmond Road, Bangalore Bangalore KA 560025 IN. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the books, papers, minutes books, forms, and returns filed by the 
Company and also information provided by the Company, agents, and authorized 
representative during the course of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board processes and compliances-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and record 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the 
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applicable provisions of the  
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  
(ii) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -  
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015;  

 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; and amended on 2nd of February 2018; 
 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;  
 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008;  
 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations,2011; 

 
(iii) Other laws applicable to the Company as given below, we have relied on the 

compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the basis of information provided 
to us; 

 
i) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 
ii) Prevention of Sexual Harassment Act, 2013 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii) Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.  
 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following 
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observations: 
 
We report: -  
 
 That the Company has not complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI for 

conducting Board Meetings and General Meetings. 
 
 That the Company has failed to update its CIN from unlisted to Listed till date. 

 
For More Daliya and Associates 
Company Secretaries 
Peer Review Certificate: 1411/2021 
 
 
 
Keshav Daliya 
Partner 
Mem. No. 11258 
CP No. 15581 
UDIN: F011258E000223723 

 

49



 

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of 

DroneAcharya Aerial Innovations Limited (CIN: U29308KA2017PLC101287) 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) Financial 
Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the Standalone IND AS financial statements of DroneAcharya Aerial 
Innovations Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2023, 
and the statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, its profit/loss and 
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.  
Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
not determined any key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures 
to Board’s Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind 
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the 
Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with [the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended]. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
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reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone IND AS 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 
in the standalone financial statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone IND AS Financial statements comply with 

the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
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Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
f) Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than 

Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time  
during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an 
audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls 
vide notification dated June 13, 2017; 
 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance 
with the requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report that the 
company has paid remuneration exceeding the limits and special resolution has been 
passed in the EGM (dated 03/09/2022). 
 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
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whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and 
 
(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement. 
 

v. No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company. 
 

FOR, KPRK & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FRN: 103051W 
 
 
 

CA KISHAN R VERMA 
PARTNER 

PLACE: NAGPUR            MEM NO.: 046239 
DATE: 29.04.2023     
UDIN: 23046239BGXMLZ5875 
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Annexure ‘A’ 

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements”. 

 

We report that: 

(i) (a)   (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets; 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant and Equipment have 
been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; except on one 
occasion and one discrepancy was noticed on such verification is that the two 
vehicles purchased by the company during the year for Rs. 7,50,000/- & Rs 
31,00,000/- and Vehicle purchased last year whose WDV as on 01/04/2022 is Rs. 
12,61,298/- the title of such vehicles is not yet transferred in the name of the 
company. Depreciation on such asset charged by the company for Rs 1,95,188/-, 
Rs.8,06,775/- & Rs. 3,93,903/- and value as on 31st March 2023 was Rs. 5,54,812/-, 
Rs. 22,93,225/- & Rs. 8,67,395/- respectively. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable 
properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of the company. 

The Company per se does not owns/ hold title of any property. Hence, no reporting is 
required. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued its 
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets 
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not 
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applicable to the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings have been 
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Hence, the question of physical 
verification of the same does not arise. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not been sanctioned during 
any point of time of the year, working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets 
and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.  

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has made investments and the 
details of the same as follows:  

 

 

Particulars Amount 

Fixed Deposit Rs.25,05,68,250.00 

Share Subscription of TechNet Space and Aero 
Works Private limited (allotment is yet not 
done by the company)  

Rs. 11,20,000.00 

Mutual Fund  Rs.13,00,00,000.00 
(Amount of Investment 
as on 31st March 2023 
Rs.10,02,97,029.00) 
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, the company has provided Loans and the details of the same as 
follows 

Particulars Amount 

Awyam Synergies Private Limited Rs 10,80,00,000.00 (Amount 
outstanding as on 31st March 
2023 Rs 50500000)  

EFC Limited Rs 50000000.00 (Amount 
outstanding as on 31st March 
2023 Rs 31000000) 

 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records 
has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section148 of 
the Companies Act. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' 
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to 
the information and explanation given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as 
on 31st of March,2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable, except in case of Professional Tax amounting to Rs. 1,06,800/- 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed 
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any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the 
Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on 
short term basis have been used for long term purposes by the company. 
 

(c) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint 
venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. 
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable. 

 
(d) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint 

venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. 
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable. 
 

(x) The company has raised money by way of initial public offer during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is applicable. 

Nature of 
Securities 
viz. Equity 

shares 
/Preference 

shares 
/Convertible 
debentures 

Purpose for 
which funds 
were raised 

Total Amount 
Raised /opening 

un- utilized 
balance 

Amount 
utilized 
for the 
other 

purpose 

Un-utilized 
balance as at 

Balance sheet 
date 

Remarks, 
if any 

Equity Share 
Capital Operations Rs. 

33,96,60,000/- Rs. 0.00 Rs. 
33,96,60,000/- NA 

                     
      Note:  The Company has raised money through IPO for operations and acquisition of Fixed 

assets etc. however for the time being the amount so raised is invested in FDR and 
Mutual Fund. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has utilized funds raised by 
way of preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures 
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) for the purposes for which they were raised. 

Nature of 
Securities 
viz. Equity 

shares 
/Preference 

shares 
/Convertible 
debentures 

Purpose for 
which funds 
were raised 

Total Amount 
Raised /opening 

un- utilized 
balance 

Amount 
utilized 
for the 
other 

purpose 

Un-utilized 
balance as at 

Balance sheet 
date 

Remarks
, if any 

Convertible 
Preference 

Shares 
Operations Rs. 

19,31,16,924/- Rs. 0.00 Rs. 
19,31,16,924/- 

 

 

a. (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the 
company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no 
whistle-blower complaints had been received by the company  

b. The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 
3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial 
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards; 

d. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company require to have an internal 
audit system. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a), of the Order is applicable 
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(b) The internal auditor is being appointment for the whole year and the point so raised by 
the internal auditor has been considered and rectified by the management of the company 
and the same has being considered by the statutory auditor.   

e. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable to the Company 

f. (a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). 
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not conducted any 
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of 
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment 
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Group 
does not have CIC as part of the Group. 

g. Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year 
and immediately preceding Financial Year. 

h. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors. 

i. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment 
of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans 
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on 
the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
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liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

j. Based on our examination, the provision of section 135 are not applicable on the 
company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.  

k. The company is not required to prepare Consolidate financial statement hence this clause 
is not applicable. 

 

FOR, KPRK & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FRN: 103051W 
 

 
CA KISHAN R VERAM 

PARTNER 
PLACE: NAGPUR            MEM NO.: 046239 
DATE: 29.04.2023     
UDIN: 23046239BGXMLZ5875 
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Figures For the Current Reporting Period 31 March 2023

Less than 6 
Months

6 Months -
1Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More 
than 3 
Years

Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Good 846.20                   275.66               4.90                  -           -         1,126.76  
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Doubtful -                         -                     -                    0.50         -         0.50         
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Good -                         -                     -                    -           -         -          
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Doubtful -                         -                     -                    -           -         -          
Others -          

Figures For the Previous Reporting Period 31 March 2022

Less than 6 
Months

6 Months -
1Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More 
than 3 
Years

Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Good 124.08                   -                     -                    -           -         124.08     
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Doubtful -                         -                     0.51                  -           -         0.51         
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Good -                         -                     -                    -           -         -          
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Doubtful -                         -                     -                    -           -         -          
Others -          

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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Figures For the Current Reporting Period 31 March 2023
All the Trade Payables are Unsecured

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More 
than 3 
Years

Total

MSME -                       -                 -                    -            -         
Others 183.55                 -                 -                    -            183.55    
Dispute dues - MSME -                       -                 -                    -            -         
Dispute dues - Others -                       -                 -                    -            -         

-                       -                 -                    -            -         
Total 183.55    

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment
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Figures For the Previous Reporting Period 31 March 2022
All the Trade Payables are Unsecured

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More 
than 3 
Years

Total

MSME -                       -                 -                    -            -         
Others 0.99                     -                 -                    -            0.99        
Dispute dues - MSME -                       -                 -                    -            -         
Dispute dues - Others -                       -                 -                    -            -         

-                       -                 -                    -            -         
Total 0.99        

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment
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The company has sold/ redeemed the Mutual funds of Rs. 3 Crores where the capital gain
of Rs. 2.97 lakhs has earned by the company. The amount is considered in the Statement
of profit and loss as the mutual funds are classified as FVTPL
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Registered office

Cabin no - 10, 5th Floor IndiQube Penta,
New No. 51, (Old No.14) Richmond Road,

Bangalore 560025

Corporate office

1st & 2nd Floor, Galore Tech IT Park,
LMD Chowk, Bavdhan

Pune 411021

investor.relations@droneacharya.com
+91 989 000 35590

www.droneacharya.com
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